
 
TOWN MEETING 

September 8, 2022 
8:00 PM 

  
AGENDA 

  

1. Call to Order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Approval of Agenda 
4. Consent Agenda 
5. Approval of Minutes (Council Meeting – June 9 , Work Session – June 23,) 
6. Resident Input – Public comment period on items not on the agenda. All comments 

are limited to 3 minutes. Residents are asked to please state name and ward. 
7. Committee Reports 

• Recreation Council 
• Green Infrastructure Committee 
• Cheverly Day Committee 
• Planning Board 
• Board of Elections 

8. Hispanic Heritage Month Proclamation – Mayor Munyeneh will read proclamation 
9. FY 20/21 Audit - Diane Mock will present the FY21 audit. 
10. Debt Policy – Jennifer Diercksen will present a policy to mayor and council for 

implementation 
11. Bonding Update – Attorney Rader and Town administrator Galloway will provide an 

update on bonding and discuss method of sale  
12. Historic Preservation - Ottery Group will make a presentation on the Cheverly 

National Register nomination 
13. Speed Cameras New Vendor Agreement – Chief Miller & Town Administrator will 

present agreement for new speed camera vendor 
14. 1st Reader of Zoned Parking Ordinance – Mayor Munyeneh will read the proposed 

ordinance 
15. Town Administrator Report – Town Administrator will provide a report to the Mayor 

and Council regarding Town operations and a summary of actions taken 
16. Police Report – Chief Miller will give monthly report 
17. Public Works Report – Director Brayman will give update on the Department of Public 

Works. 
18. Review of September Work session Meeting agenda and future requests and 

Town Administrator will offer a forecast of the Work Session Meeting agenda. Mayor will 
seek Council input on agenda items for consideration for future meetings. 

19. Mayor and Council Announcements – Opportunity for Mayor and Council to share 
community happenings and events. The mayor will afford each elected official up to five 
minutes to speak. Unused time may not be transferred, and formal council business will 
not be conducted. 

20. Adjourn 



 
(*) denotes an agenda item requiring action (typically expressed by a vote) of Mayor and 
Council. 
  
*In addition to general Resident Input, for regular meetings, as part of action items, 
presentations and discussion items on the agenda, residents seeking to speak will be recognized 
by the presiding officer. Residents may speak once, for no more than three minutes on each 
eligible agenda item. 
  
Please Note: Pursuant to the Annotated Code of Maryland, State Government 
Article Section 10-508(a), the Council by majority vote may retire to executive or 
closed session at any time during the meeting. Should the Council retire to 
executive or closed session; the mayor will announce the reasons and a report will 
be issued at a future meeting disclosing the reasons for such session. 
  
Topic: Cheverly Town Meeting 
  
Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84025983118?pwd=cEhsbmU2aEs5MGViaGJnWVh6c1h6UT0
9 
  
Webinar ID: 840 2598 3118 
Passcode: 213079 
  
Or One tap mobile : 
    US: +13017158592,,84025983118#  
    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
        US: +1 301 715 8592  
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84025983118?pwd=cEhsbmU2aEs5MGViaGJnWVh6c1h6UT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84025983118?pwd=cEhsbmU2aEs5MGViaGJnWVh6c1h6UT09


TOWN MEETING June 9, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 

TOWN MEETING 
June 9, 2022 

8:00 PM 
Minutes 

 

Call to Order 
Meeting called to order at 8:00 pm via Zoom. 
 
In attendance: Mayor Munyeneh, Council Members Nettles, Watson, McCann, 
Dalaker, Garces and Fry   
Town Attorney: Jason Deloach 
Staff: Town Administrator – Dylan Galloway, Assistant to the Town Administrator -Priscilla 
Matthews Town Accountant – Mike Lightfield, Director of Public Works – Steve Brayman, 
Captain Silvers, Town Clerk – Giselle Richards,   

 
Pledge of Allegiance: Led by Daisy Troop #22029   
    
Approval of Agenda 

Motion to Approve the Agenda: by CM McCann seconded by CM Nettles. Approved 

unanimously. 

Motion to Approve the Consent Agenda: by CM Watson seconded by CM Fry. Approved 

unanimously. 

 Items on the Consent Agenda: 

•  Approval of Minutes (Council Meeting – May 12, Work Session – May 26) 

• Grant Request –Friends of Quincy Run Watershed 

Resident Input –  
• Sheila Salo – Has any draft of the budget been made available to the public? Only 

the first draft was published and unsure if there have been any updates.  

 
Committee Reports  

Recreation Council:      No updates 
Green Infrastructure Committee: Sheila Salo – Presentation regarding trees and 
their benefits and how more attention is now being made towards the roots.  
Cheverly Day Committee CM Watson – Meetings are one a month on Wednesdays. 
This month is Wednesday, June 22. Reminded residents that the Cheverly is on October 1 
Planning Board:   CM Fry – Planning board meets 1st Tuesday of the month and still 
seeking members to join.  



TOWN MEETING June 9, 2022 
 

Board of Elections:    No Update 
Mayor thanks the women’s club for cards to council.  

7. Proclamation on Pride Month – Read by Mayor Munyeneh 
8. Juneteenth Proclamation – Read by Mayor Munyeneh 
9. Ordinance 2022-04 - FY23 Budget – 3rd Reader by Mayor Munyeneh 

• Move to adopt Ordinance 2022-04 made by CM Dalaker. 2nd CM Watson.  
Approved unanimously. 

• CM Watson asked when council can see audit for FY 21 and how confident is the 
accountant with the figures.  

• Mr. Lightfield stated that an update from the auditor is expected on Monday. The 
town has been requesting for an update for some time.  

• CM McCann asked if there is an update for actuals for 2022 local income taxes. 

10. Town Administrator Report –  
• MML Summer Conference is 6/12-6/15. In my absence Chief Miller will be in charge. 
• Code enforcement code walks started this week in Wards 1 & 2 
• MDOT has reviewed 202 and agreed that there is a need for a bike lane. Working 

closely with neighboring towns. David Tansey will be drafting letter 
• Covid test giveaway 6/10/22 at town hall 
• Ice Cream Social on 6/22/22 
• Iced Tea social on 6/24/22 
• Juneteenth event on 6/19/22. Juneteenth will be observed by the town on Monday 

June 20th.  Town offices & public works will be closed.  
• Attended SHA meeting on 6/2 regarding debris clean up on Rt 50 & Columbia Park 

Rd 
11. Police Report – Chief Miller provided report for police department. 
12. Public Works Report – Director Brayman provided report for public works department.    
13. Review of June Work session Meeting agenda and future requests  

• CM Nettles – Boyd Park restrooms 
• CM Fry – Facilities usage policy 
• Mayor – Annexation, Historic District Designation 
• Galloway – Record retention policy 

14. Mayor and Council Announcements 
• CM Nettles, Ward 1-   6-10-22 there will be coffee & conversations with Chief Miller 

and TA Galloway behind American Legion 
• Thanks to PD & Public Works for work done in Ward 1 
• Thanks to administrative staff 

• CM Watson, Ward 2- Legion is open Wed – Sat. Food is available for purchase in 
person, and online. Karaoke on Thursdays, Coffee on Fridays. Beer garden on 
June 24th.  

• CM McCann, Ward 3 - Thanks public works for field maintenance. St. Ambrose 
Men’s Club has golf event 

• CM Dalaker, Ward 4 - Thanks VM Fry & Mr. Galloway while he was out 
• CM Garces, Ward 5 –     
• CM Fry, Ward 6 – Kudos to Public Works for maintenance of fields. Thank you 

to the American Legion for opening their doors to the residents of Cheverly 
Station apartments when their A/C unit did not work.  

• June 11th – PG County Multicultural event at Equestrian Center 



TOWN MEETING June 9, 2022 
 

• Thank you to the council for supporting LGBTQ+  
• Mayor Munyeneh – Thanks to council members that attended LGBTQ+ flag 

raising. Thanks to parents that brought their kids to Stories with the Mayor at the 
market. Thanks to Girls Scout Daisy Troop #22029 for leading the meeting with 
the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
Adjourn: by CM Nettles at 9:36 pm, seconded by CM Fry. Approved anonymously.  



 

Work Session 6/23/22 

WORKSESSION 
June 23, 2022 

7:30 PM 
 

Minutes 
  

Call to Order:  
Meeting called to order at 7:37 pm via Zoom. 
 
In attendance Mayor Munyeneh, Council Members Nettles, Watson, McCann, Dalaker, Fry 
Garces Excused 
 Motion to exclude CM Garces made by CM Fry. 2nd by CM Nettles. All in favor 
 Motion to remove Item 7 (Annexation) made by CM Watson. 2nd CM McCann. All in 
favor 
 
Town Attorney: Jason DeLoach 
Staff: Town Administrator – Dylan Galloway, Public Works Director – Steve Brayman, Town 
Clerk – Giselle Richards, Communications Specialist – Tonya Jones 
 
Pledge of Allegiance and Flag: CM Watson 

1. Town Administrator Update - Town Administrator Galloway –  
• Ms. Ganesha Martin gave council an update on Police Complaint Board 

i. Applications have been received except for 2 wards.  
ii. Selection committee is reviewing the applications received 

iii. Background check, resume & references will be required  
• Public works Director Brayman 

i. Progress on Carlyle, Greenleaf, Forest Rd. 
ii. Added a storm drain across from the Greenleaf Triangle 

iii. Sidewalks started on Wayne Place  
• Scheduling Tri-Town meeting 7/15/22 with MDE regarding the DC Circulator 
• Presented quote for curtains for the stage. Less than what was budgeted. To be 

voted on at council meeting 
• Hospital Hill Update 

i. Developer will be announced 6/28/22 at a meeting open to public 
ii. Community Meeting 7/12/22 

iii. Website will be created by RDA for community updates 
iv. See Click Fix will launch 8/1/22 
v. Civic Plus notifications will replace CodeRed 

• Pavilion Update 



 

Work Session 6/23/22 

i. Will be wired with electricity. Work will begin 6/24/22. TA will apply for 
a grant to get a concrete pad installed 

• Public Hearing for Residential Parking restrictions on 7/21/22 for the  following  
areas:  

i. 6500 and 6600 blocks of Oak St. 
ii. 3200 block of Hillside Ave. 

iii. 6500 block of Maureen Ct. 
• Code Enforcement FAQs brochure being created for distribution to residents 
• Code compliance software will be launched by end of September 2022 

2. Town Grant Request –  
• Cheverly Community Market – Erin Kee presented request.  Add to consent 
• VineCorps – Diana from VineCorps presented request. Add to consent 

3. Boyd Park Restrooms Update 
• Quotes have not been received 
• Prologis and Amazon have committed to fund renovations 

4. Facilities Usage Policy Update/Review 
• Exclusions section will need to be re-examined/removed 
• Community organizations and newsletter policies need to be addressed 

5. Annexation Update 
• No update until July 

6. Historic District Designation Update 
• Final stages of review. Will come in July to update the town 

7. Record Retention Policy –  
• Mr. Galloway introduced proposed policy for records management 
• Negotiating with a company for digital archiving 
• Will be voted after review by the town attorney  

8. Introduction of Charter Amendment Resolution CAR-2-22 –  
• Mayor Munyeneh introduced Charter Amendment Resolution CAR-2-22 

i. PURPOSE OF REPEALING AND RE-ENACTING, WITH 
AMENDMENTS, SECTION C-29 (TAXES: LEVY, COLLECTION, 
ASSESSMENTS) OF ARTICLE VII (POWERS) OF THE CHARTER OF 
THE TOWN OF CHEVERLY FOR THE PURPOSE OF CLARIFYING 
AND CONFIRMING THAT (1) THE TAX CAP PREVIOUSLY 
CONTAINED IN SUCH SECTION IS NOT EFFECTIVE 

9. Update by CM Fry & Garces Regarding Cheverly Station Apartments –  
• Parking policy has been changed. Residents now need to apply and pay for permits 

which are subject to approval 
• No real change on how residents are treated 

 



 

Work Session 6/23/22 

10. Review of July Town Meeting Agenda and Future Requests –  
• Historic District Designation Update 
• Quotes for Curtain on Consent agenda 
• Annexation Update 
• Booms Update at future meeting 
• Newsletter ads -Create general guidelines and then get community engagement 
• Rank choice voting consideration 
• Halloween event  
• Redistricting process overview 
• Lowing voting age 

11. Resident Input 
• Sonya Gross from Progressive Cheverly would like for town to allow Progressive 

Cheverly to be a community organization. Endorsements are done by a large group 
that needs to be voted on by the organization.  

• Madeleine Golde from Progressive Cheverly- Progressive Cheverly has been 
serving the town for 17 years and would like to be a town organization to be able 
to have access to use facilities to hold meetings 

• Clareen Heikal from Progressive Cheverly  suggested that there be a disclaimer 
from the town that the views of the organizations are not the views of the town. 

• Fred Price – Can town meetings be on the cable channel?   
12. Motion to adjourn at 10:16 pm made by CM McCann. 2nd by CM Watson   

Approved unanimously.  

  



Town of Cheverly – Financial Policies 

 

• Balanced Budget Policy: 
 

o The Town of Cheverly (the “Town”) will adopt an annual General Fund budget in which recurring 
revenues and recurring expenditures are equal without the use of reserves (balanced budget). Any 
one-time revenues or use of reserves above the reserve policy thresholds outlined below will be 
used for one-time, non-recurring expenditures such as capital assets, pay-as-you-go projects in the 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP), debt reduction and reserve contributions. 

 
• Debt Policies:  

 
o Debt as a Percentage of Full Value: The Town will maintain its tax-supported debt at a level 

not-to-exceed three percent (3%) of full value. This ratio is a measure of debt capacity and allows 
the Town to determine if additional debt can be issued to fund current and/or future capital needs.   

 
o Debt Service as a Percentage of Total Governmental Fund Expenditures: The Town will 

maintain its annual tax-supported debt service (as recorded in the Debt Service Fund) at or below 
ten percent (10%) of total governmental fund expenditures. This ratio is a measure of debt 
affordability and allows the Town to determine its ability to repay tax-supported debt without 
affecting other general government services.  

 
o Total Fixed Costs as a Percentage of Total Governmental Fund Expenditures: The Town 

will calculate a fixed cost burden that will measure the Town’s overall financial flexibility. The 
Town’s fixed cost burden will be calculated as a total of annual tax-supported debt service from 
the Debt Service Fund, annual pension contributions and annual contributions for Other Post-
Employment Benefits (“OPEB”) as a percentage of total governmental fund expenditures. The 
Town’s fixed cost burden shall not exceed 25% of total governmental fund expenditures.  

 
• Reserve Policy:  

 
o Rainy Day Fund: The Town will establish a Rainy Day Fund (“RDF”) that will be maintained at a 

level not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of General Fund revenues.  Reserves in the RDF 
should only be available for use to help offset significant revenue or expenditure fluctuations 
driven by extreme one-time events such as natural disasters, global pandemics, economic 
recessions, and/or federal mandates. Use of RDF reserves requires a supermajority vote of Town 
Council. 

If the Town Council, upon the recommendation of the Town Administrator wishes to appropriate 
RDF reserves such that the amount would fall below its 25% threshold, such appropriation must 
be accompanied by a reserve replenishment plan that restores the fund balance to its policy level 
within the subsequent three years. 

 

o Budget Stabilization Fund: The Town will establish a Budget Stabilization Fund (“BSF”) that will 
be maintained at a level not less than three percent (3%) and a target of five percent (5%) of 



General Fund revenues. Reserves in the BSF can help offset any revenue or expenditure 
fluctuations that may occur in any given fiscal year with a simple majority vote of Town Council. 
Reserves in the BSF should be utilized before any draws can be made on the RDF. 

At the close of each fiscal year, the BSF shall receive any remaining operating surplus after the RDF 
is full. Balances in the BSF will be allowed to accumulate until they reach an amount equal to 5% 
of General Fund revenues.  If the BSF reaches the 5% target, the portion of any surplus normally 
allocated to the BSF would be equally split between a capital reserve fund (50%) and unassigned 
General Fund balance that can be used for other one-time items (50%). 

 

o Capital Reserve Fund: The Town recognizes that continued, periodic reinvestment and 
maintenance of capital infrastructure is critical to maintaining the quality of life for residents and 
businesses and minimizing the additional cost associated with deferred maintenance. Direct 
funding for the Capital Reserve Fund (“CRF”) shall come from 50% of any annual operating 
surpluses in the Town’s General Fund, as long as the Town’s 25% policy for the RDF and 5% target 
for the BSF have been met. 

Monies in the CRF shall be appropriated by the Town Council for payment of debt service that was 
incurred for capital projects (such as the Series 2022 Bonds) or to directly fund capital 
expenditures. 

 

• Frequency of Financial Policy Review: The Town will review all policies to determine if they are still 
applicable or if any changes need to be implemented at least every two years after adoption. 

 

 



SERVICE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 

THE TOWN OF CHEVERLY 

ALTUMINT, INC 

This Service Agreement (the "Agreement") is made and entered this __ day of ____ __, 2022 

(the "Effective Date"), by and between Altum int, Inc. with offices at 4600 Forbes Boulevard, Lanham, MD 

20706 ("ALTUM INT"), and the Town of Cheverly, a municipal corporation, with offices at 6401 Forest Rd, 

Cheverly, MD 20785 ("Client"). 

Background 

Whereas, ALTUM INT is in the business of providing automated traffic violation detection, imaging 

and administrative services to authorized municipalities and government agencies using ALTUMINT'S 

proprietary system (as more specifically described herein below, the "Services"); and 

Whereas, CLIENT is an authorized municipality or government agency with a need for such 

Services; and 

Whereas, CLIENT now desires to contract with ALTUM INT for the provision of such Services; 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby 

acknowledged, CLIENT and ALTUMINTagree as follows: 

1. Services. During the Term of this Agreement, and in consideration of the Fees specified in Section

6 below, ALTUMINTshall use reasonable commercial efforts to provide the Services to CLIENT in

accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Services shall include the following:

a) Detection and Recording of Potential Traffic Violations. ALTUM INT will make available to

CLIENT certain traffic violation detection systems, which work in conjunction with a

photographic, video, or electronic camera and may also include certain equipment

provided by third parties, detect other traffic violations and produce photographs, video

or digital images of vehicles potentially violating traffic laws, and which may include, but

are not limited to, portable, mobile and or fixed site camera systems ("Monitoring

System") to detect and record potential traffic violations at the service locations(s)

selected by CLIENT ("Recorded Events"). CLIENT agrees to operate the Monitoring System

in a manner consistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The Client also

agrees to operate all systems in compliance with applicable and prevailing laws of the

State, and/or local jurisdiction.

b) Initial Validation of Recorded Events. ALTUMINT will promptly perform a preliminary

review of Recorded Events data for the sole purpose of attempting to filter Recorded

Event data that is of insufficient quality for further use. For example, and without

limitation, ALTUMINT may filter Recorded Events data in which no motor vehicle

registration plate information or only partial information is reasonably discernible from

the Recorded Event. CLIENT will have the sole and exclusive responsibility for the final

1 



























TOWN OF CHEVERLY 
ORDINANCE No.: 2022-06 

 
An Ordinance whereby the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Cheverly amending Chapter 27 of the Town Code for the 
 purpose of creating additional residential permit parking zones  

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to § C-23 of the Town’s Charter, the Mayor and Council are 

vested with the authority to pass ordinances and take such measures as they may deem necessary 

for the good government and improvement of the Town; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to §27.5.1 of the Town Code the Mayor and Council are 

authorized to restrict parking on public highways and other areas within the town; and  

 WHEREAS, a petition was filed to add additional residential parking permit zones on 

three (3) streets within the town; and  

 WHEREAS, after proper notice the Mayor and Council held a public hearing to consider 

the petition; and  

 WHEREAS, after considering the record made during the public hearing, the Mayor and 

Council have determined that it is in the public interest to establish additional residential parking 

zones within the town. 

 WHEREAS, §27.5.1(f) requires the establishment of the additional residential parking 

permit areas be in the form of an ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Cheverly 

in regular session assembled that Section 27-5.1 of Chapter 27 be amended as follows: 

Sec. 27-5.1. - Residential area permit parking. 

(a) - (p) * * * * 

(q) Residential permit parking areas: 

(1) Zone 1: 61st, 62nd and 64th Avenues (Ward 4), and State Street. 

(2) Zone 2: Reserved. 

(3) Zone 3: 2200, 2300 and 2400 blocks of Cheverly Avenue. 

(4) Zone 4: Arbor Street, Crestlawn Avenue. 

(5) Zone 5: 2300 block of Belleview Avenue. 



(6) Zone 6: 2300, 2400 and 2500 blocks of Lake Avenue and Benton Road. 

(7) Zone 7: 2400 block of Valley Way. 

(8) Zone 8: 5900 block of Medical Terrace; and that portion of Belleview Avenue fronting the 
lot known as 3300 Belleview Avenue. 

(9) ZONE 9: 6500 AND 6600 BLOCKS OF OAK STREET. 

(10) ZONE 10: 3200 BLOCK OF HILLSIDE AVENUE. 

(11) ZONE 11: 6500 BLOCK OF MAUREEN COURT. 

AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall take effect 30 days from 

the date of its adoption. 

 AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that a fair summary of this Ordinance shall 

forthwith be published twice in a newspaper having general circulation in the Town and 

otherwise be made available to the public.  

 INTRODUCED by the Town Council of the Town of Cheverly, Maryland, at a regular 

public meeting on _________________, 2022. 

 ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Cheverly, Maryland, at a regular public 

meeting on _________________, 2022. 

 

ADOPTED:_________________________ 

Attest:____________________________  _______________________________ 
       Mayor 
 
__________________________________  ________________________________ 
Councilmember     Councilmember 
 
 
__________________________________  ________________________________ 
Councilmember     Councilmember  
 
 
__________________________________  ________________________________ 
Councilmember     Councilmember  
 
Asterisks * * * * Indicate matter remaining unchanged in existing law but not set forth in 
Ordinance. 
 
CAPS indicate additions.  


	6.9.22 Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	TOWN MEETING
	In attendance: Mayor Munyeneh, Council Members Nettles, Watson, McCann, Dalaker, Garces and Fry
	Approval of Agenda
	Motion to Approve the Agenda: by CM McCann seconded by CM Nettles. Approved unanimously.
	Motion to Approve the Consent Agenda: by CM Watson seconded by CM Fry. Approved unanimously.
	Items on the Consent Agenda:
	  Approval of Minutes (Council Meeting – May 12, Work Session – May 26)
	 Grant Request –Friends of Quincy Run Watershed





